WELL-BORING AND WORKOVER CONTROL

Software

for DEL-140 and DEL-150 Electronic Dynamometers

User Manual Revision 1.3 All the exclusive proprietary rights to the «Well-boring and Workover Control» Software are owned by NPP Petroline-A LLC.

Certificate of official program registration for computers No.2012660348 was entered into the Register of Programs for Computers on November 15-th 2012.

© NPP Petroline-A LLC 2012-2017 e-mail: <u>main@pla.ru</u> web: <u>www.pla.ru</u>

Adobe ReaderTM is the registered trademark of Adode System Incorporated. IntelTM is the registered trademark of Intel. Microsoft WindowsTM is the registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation.

All the trademarks and signs mentioned in this Manual and the software are owned by their legitimate owners.

This revision of the User Manual sets out a description of the «Well-boring and Workover Control» Software, Version 1.02

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Program Application	3
2. Computer Requirements at the Workplace	3
3. Installing the Program	3
4. Getting started to with the Program	4
5. Basics	6
6. "Server" Panel	7
7. "Devices" Panel	10
8. "Measurements" Panel	16
9. Measurements Window	22
10. Monitoring Windows	
11. "Reports" Panel	
12. "Memory module" Panel	
13. "Directories" Panel	
14. "Service" Panel	
15. Configuration of the Enterprise's Dedicated Server and Network Con	nections
16. Integration with the Information Systems	
17. Technical Support	40

1. Program Application

The «Well-boring and Workover Control» Software is designed to work with DEL-140 and DEL-150 devices and their modifications. It performs the following functions: monitoring the status and indications of the devices, processing these readings, exporting these readings into the Company's information systems and creating reports on measurement results.

2. Computer Requirements at the Workplace

To be able to work with the program, a personal computer with the following configuration is needed:

- Intel or AMD x86-compatible Processor, 2GHz and more;
- Operating Memory no less than 2GB;
- Free space on the hard disk to be no less than 200MB (without considering the size of the local database for measurements);
- 2 spare USB ports;
- Not less than 19" Monitor with screen resolution to be no less than 1600x900;
- Microsoft Windows 7 Operating System or later versions;
- Uninterrupted Power Supply Unit;
- Acrobat Reader Program pre-installed to read the e-version of this Manual.

The information for system administrators regarding configuration of the Company's dedicated server and network connections of remote clients and devices is described in chapter 15 of the Manual.

3. Installing the Program

The program is installed by starting up the distribution file of the program. It can be downloaded on the web site of NPP Petroline-A LLC <u>http://www.pla.ru</u> or can be found on the compact disk supplied as part of the DEL-140 or DEL-150 Kits. To initiate installation, start up distribution file toucan(*version No.*).exe. In the process of installation, it is required that a folder be specified into which the program will be installed. **Attention:** Changing the type of installation from *"Full"* to *"Custom"* is recommended for experienced users only. The *"Custom"* type of installation allows a set of selectable components of the program to be determined.

4. Getting started to with the Program

The program can be started up using the "Well-boring and Workover Control" icon on the Windows desktop, or by selecting in the menu of the programs "Start > Programs > Well-boring and Workover Control" the icon of the program.



Connection		🖌 Ok
Local connection		Cancal
😸 Server Petroline-A		A Cancel
		💽 Test
		Create
		Remove
Connection settings		
Display title		i riie
Local connection		C
Group title		The Move up
	•	🐥 Move down
Server address	Timeout (sec)	
127.0.0.1	120	

The main window of the program contains the menu, a panel of tabs on the left and the working area on the right. The menu has points from which to select connection to servers, program settings and to call reference information.

When the program is started up by default, connection is made to the local server of the program. To set up connection to the remote server, select the "*Connections settings*..." point in the "*Connection*" menu. Press the "*Create*" button to add an entry on the

connection to the new server. Enter the title, address of the server and the timeout (maximum waiting time) for the server to carry out the commands. To check if the

connection is available, press "Check". If the selected server is available, the relevant confirmation will be issued.

		2000-00-00 22	-
	Local connectio	on	on Statistic
v	Server Petroline	-A	information
2	Connections se	ttings	information
1	Exit		to system
_	Contraction of the local division of the loc	- open	aranty system
gin	Enter login	and passwor	em version
gin 🖌	Enter login Contact you to the serve	and passwor ar administra er.	en version
gin	Enter login . Contact you to the serve Connection	and passwor ur administra er. Server Pr	em version
gin	Enter login Contact you to the servi Connection User demo	and passwoi ur administra er. Server Pi	m version
gin 🖌	Connection User demo Password	Syste and passwor ur administra er. Server Pe	m version

You can change the existing connections, by selecting from the list of connections the relevant entry and by editing its settings.

After creating the new connection, it will be available for selection in the "*Connection*" menu.

When connecting to the remote server, it will be required to enter the user login and the password. In order to get this information, please contact the server administrator.

With the help of the "Settings" menu item, you can adjust the network connection, using the proxy server, you can select the displayed units of measurement and the format for presentation of time and dates, set up the display of the measurement and monitoring, set up the alarm to signal exceeded limits in the measurements and monitoring windows as well

as to enable the service mode of the program operation, which is described in greater detail in chapter 14 of the Manual.

The "*Help*" item of the menu provides the capabilities of displaying the information about the program, its current version, the addresses of the manufacturer's web site and e-mail. Also in this menu item, you can check whether the new version of the program is available and open up this Manual in the PDF format. In order to be able to read the Manual, it will be required to install Acrobat Reader.

5. Basics

Having established communication with the server (local or remote), the user can perform the following operations in the program:

- control and manage connections of dynamometer devices which are connected to the server,
- work with measurements in the database of the server,
- import measurements into the database,
- export measurements from the database,
- read measurements from the memory module of the dynamometer kit,
- create and print out reports on measurements,
- edit reference information regarding the kits, work, users and company departments.

The above operations can be restricted by access rights, which are determined by the server administrator for the users.

All the functions of the program are thematically divided into panels. The icons of the panels are on the left in the main window of the program: "Server", "Devices", "Measurements", "Memory module", "Directories". By selecting a specific icon on the panel, we display the relevant panel in the working area of the main window of the program.

6. "Server" Panel

The "Server" Panel gives the information about the currently connected server. The "General" tab contains the general data regarding the server and its version, about the operating system, the operating time of the server and other auxiliary information about it.



The "*Statistics*" tab contains statistical information about the server operation and the information about the users' work sessions.

ell-boring and We nection Settings	orkover Control - Server F Help	etroline-A							
-	Information Statistics	Configuration							
Server	General User sessions selection	Lusers conditions	🧐 Events						
[managed]	Show last sessions	grouped by usern	ames						
	Show information b	v conditions							
Devices			11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						
	Day	19 anpens 20	101. * * / //						
	Search text								
N WW		3 Show sessir	vos						
Measurements									
	Datetime 🔺	Login	User	Address	Computer	Version	Traffic	Duration	
	19.04.2016 22:00:50	with .	40	123.4.0.1	442-2905008	1.03.1549			
Reports	08.04.2016 8:56:46	HT I	and .	127.6-0-1	100,000	1.03.1548	12.6K / 193K	00:01:25	
	04.04.2016 13:37:52	201010	Corner	127.6-0.1	0658-90	1.02.1536	47K / 15.1M	00:11:58	
	31.03.2016 15:29:06	THE PROOF	Netpeose EAper.	127.4.0.1	HONE-TH	1.03.1544	5.61K / 94.7K	00:00:52	
	11.03.2016 11:18:58	kogsak	Second Sector serve	127.4.0.1	NAME AND PARTY OF	1.02.1536	977 / 18.3K	00:00:07	
lemory module	10.03.2016 9:44:35	pie	Ilgoponalia	127.6-0-1	KARDNELDN	1.02.1536	2.07K / 36.4K	00:00:09	
1.1	19.01.2016 8:10:07	2010	CHENE	127.4.0.1	AV[A004	1.01.1517	1.35M / 26.5M	04:12:52	
	15.01.2016 17:10:31	konsek:	Second Second reserve	127.4.4.1	NOSTWI-ACTIVITIE	1.01.1497	714K / 11M	01:26:08	
-	27.10.2015 15:28:27	kogsak	Second Sector serve	127.4.0.1	000870-000	1.01.1497	4.48K / 444K	00:00:28	
Directories	29.09.2015 10:00:46	edmin .	82.884	127.6-0-1	TOUCAN	1.01.1497	2.97K / 47.7K	00:00:18	
	24.09.2015 1:51:54	201017	Corner	127.6-0.1	449-2806000	1.01.1496	9.73K / 158K	00:00:49	
	31.07.2015 8:35:27	preset.	Corner	127.6-0.1	MARSHIELDN	1.01.1475		00:01:52	
	17.06.2015 11:53:42	pie	Repponalis	127.4.0.1	NONSTRUCTOR:	1.01.1470		00:04:35	
	14.05.2015 14:54:25	Direction of the local distribution of the l	Former	127.6-0-1	1.054400	1.01.1463		00:05:35	
	23.04.2015 9:34:56	201017	Corner.	127.6.0.1	54739	1.01.1448		00:00:13	
	14.04.2015 11:47:50	preset.	Figure .	127.6-0-1	HOME-TH	1.01.1460		00:05:29	
					and the second				

By default, the list displays the last sessions of the users. There is also a capability of reflecting sessions by specific days and searching for sessions by text conditions.

The "*Events*" tab contains the information about the server messages, user's critical actions and the messages from the kit.

Configuration	s Event type Source Department	All All Mess	v v soge text		
Loers Surce Source Source Ammenia Ammenia Ammenia Ammenia Ammenia	Event type Source Department	Al Al Estimate Al	v v soge text		
tons P appens 2016 r.	Event type Source Department	All All Version of the All Versi	sage text		
anpena 2016 r. A generation of the search	Event type Source Department	All All t Mess	v v siage text er bon		
	Source	All Mess	sage text		
Idepartments	Source Department	All Mess	vsage text		
source	Department	t Mess User	isage text ir looin		
source	Department	t Mess User	isage text er koln		
Source 150 _ All Mar 142 _ All Mar 149 _ All Mar	Department	t Mess User	isage text ir looin		
Source 1:50 Am 1:42 Am 1:44 Am 1:44 Am 1:49 Amm	Department	t Mess User	isage text er kojo		
150 🔒 🔐		User	er lagin		
1:42 & ANN 1:14 & ANN 1:09 & ANN					
814 🏯 Am		User	er logout		
eog 🧸 💵		User	er login		
		User	er logout		
kOS 👹 bikryel		Serv	ver configuration was changed by i	user "AVP"	
1:59 👗 A##		Char	anges applied to server configuration	on	
		Serv	ver configuration was changed by i	user AVP	
User login					
Session: 0+10+07					
Login: AVII-					
Address: 2014.0					
Computer And Incomp					
Cleric version, Link tree					
	User logn Session: United States Logn: ANA User name and Address: Use and Computer and address Computer and address Computer and address	55 @ Danvel Decelopin Section: 014980-402 Login: AVX- address: 0249 Address: 0249 Computer: AVX-PAR(0)(0) Clent version: LLDS.1244	55 Without Series Serie	Server configuration was changed by Server configuration was changed by User logn Sesson: 0+994-907 Logn: AVP User nom: 0.2007 Computer Not PARIDING Computer Not PARIDING Cleft version: 0.2007	55 Server configuration was changed by user "MP" User login Session: (HTM HLT) Login: Avi Address: 120.0-1 Computer: MP HLE(N)

The "*Configuration*" tab determines the settings of the server: information about the server, connection parameters with the devices, modem settings, database connection settings, as well as parameters of integration with the corporate information systems and databases.

The parameters of connections contain configuration parameters of operation with DEL-140 and DEL-150 devices on various channels of communication.

For each type of communication, timeout values are set, i.e. maximum time of waiting for an device to respond in seconds, the number of times that command executions are repeated and the maximum size of the data packet to be transmitted. The default settings specified when installing the program are suitable for the majority of cases of the devices operation, however these settings can be updated for fine tuning. In case there are problems with data transmission from the devices, it is recommended that the setting of the timeout for awaiting response be increased as well as the number of attempts to call the device be increased while the size of the data packet transmitted be reduced. The connection parameters also include the modes of reading the measurements by default and for unknown input devices.



The setting of the reading mode "by default" is specified for all the connections when creating or starting up the server. The setting of the reading mode "for unknown input devices" is used for input connections with the devices which are not registered in the "Directories" of the program, which allows receipt of data from unidentified devices to be restricted. For more details about different reading modes, see the description in chapter 7 of this Manual.

iouem configuration		
Modems		
Modem Telit.GL868-DUAL on C	COM5 (230400)	
I Advantad medan and an		
Advanced modem configure	ation	
Search COM4 (4800)		2
Search COM4 (2400) Search COM5 (230400) - mode	m found Telit, GI 868-DUAI	
Search completed - detected m	nodems: 1	
		2

The modem is used to establish connection with the devices via CSDchannel (data transmission by fax). Before using the GSM-modem, check with your cell phone provider that the SIM card being used indeed supports the data transmission mode via CSDchannel. To set up, select the "*Choose* and configure modem..." entry, press the relevant editing button. Connect the modem to the computer and turn it on.

Then press the "Search modems" button. The program will scan all the available serial ports of the computer and will try to find the connected modems. Then, you need to select from the list of the modems found the one which will be used by the program and press "Ok".

For fine tuning configuration of the modem, you can check the "Advanced modem configuration" option. In the advanced mode, you can set up the modem control commands and temporary parameters. It is recommended that this mode be used by experienced users only.

7. "Devices" Panel

The "Devices" panel reflects connection of the devices to the current server.

-	👍 Creat	🚺 Devices	🚳 🗛 co	nnections	• 该 A	II - 54 / 25	🔹 🐺 Monito	ring 🔲				
	Devices				Objec	t.	Archive		Curren	nt values		
Server		DEL150 Nº105 85.140.1.87 - Co	23 v10.37	Бригада №16 1.14с-00	01:17 Crew Well	знакаевскнефть 0-16 9923	Current measuren Archive read 11 b	nent /s	Load	0,521 tf	Trip, [00:21] Downtime	
Devices		DEL150 Nº105 85.140.2.50 - Cr	28 v10.37	Бригада №8 1.25с - 00	01:18 TH-A Crew Well (знакаевокнефть 27-8 6395	Archive read 12 b	/s	Load	0,113 tf	[00:28] Downtime [12:01] Work code 100	
1		DEL150 Nº101 85.140.3.3 - Cor	74 v10.22 mected	0,70c - 00	01:17 Crew Wel	урлатнефть 0-11 12303	Current measuren Archive read 10 b	ient /s	Load	0,000 tf	[00:20] Downtime [22:19] Work code 22	
leasurements		DEL150 Nº103 85.140.3.51 - Co	78 v10.22	0.80c~00	01:17 Crew Well	урлатнефть 0-12 14004	Current measuren Archive read 66 b	ient /s	Load	1,423 tf	тпр	
Reports		DEL150 Nº101 85.140.2.209 - 0	82 v10.21 Connected	0.80c - 00	01:17 Crew Well	урлатнефть 0-10 16526	Current measuren Archive read 34 b	ient /s	Load	0,735 tf	[22:16] Work code 300	
		DEL140-DP N9 85.140.0.167	1730 v7.99 Connected	Сулкаев (1)Бр.№7 0.86с - 00	01:18 Crew Well 1	риканнефть 0-7 3767	Current measuren	ient	Load	0, 198 tf	[00:31] Work code 1650	
emory module		DEL140-DP Nº 85.140.2.0 - Cor	1731 v7.79 mected	Ялалтдинов Бр.№8 1.00с-00	01:27 Crew Well	риканнефть 0-8 1316	Current measuren Archive read 26 b	ient /s	Load	0,000 tf	Trip [05:55] Work code 34	
Directories		DEL140-DP N9 85.140.0.88 - Co	1735 v7.79	Карлин Бр.№2 0.91с - 00	00:16 Crew	риканнефть 0-6 2109	Current measuren Archive read 25 b	ient /s	Load	0,004 tf	[00:24] Downtime	
	Control			Information				Current values				
		Abort connect	ion	Title Serial number Version	DEL 150 Nº 10521 v 10.37	TH-Азнакаевскнефть Shop Crew	[27] [17]	Operations Works	Trip			
	<u></u>	pen current meas	urement	Connection	05 140 0 40		[m]	Load on hook	0,14	1 tf		
	4	Additional opera	tions	State	Connected	Pad	[0]					
	Read me	surements		Current measurement	00:01:17	wei	[1044-]					
	Circulton	nouslu condina		Transfer speed	31 b/s	Measurement start	2016.04.19 00:00:00					

The information is given as a list where each item is a connection to the device and contains current brief information about it.

Below the panel, there is a control panel for the connection item selected, as well as detailed information corresponding to it. By pressing the right button of the mouse on the item, you can call the context menu with a list of possible connection operations.

Connection can be made via the following communication channels:

- Serial port;
- USB port;
- Modem connection (using the GSM modem installed on the server);
- Outgoing TCP/IP connection;
- Incoming TCP/IP connection (including GPRS).

"Incoming TCP/IP" is the only *"incoming"* type of connection with which the device makes the connection with the server itself. In the other cases, connections are *"outgoing"* and the user, on his own, controls and configures the settings of the connection to the device.

To create a new outgoing connection, press the "*Create*" button on the tool panel at the top of the list. When working with the remote server, to perform this operation, the user needs to have the rights of the "*Managing outgoing device*"

connections" level. After that, you will need to select the communication channel and connection address.

For the serial port, the serial port number will be its address (for example, COM1). Instead of the number, you can enter the "*Auto*" setting, for automatic search of the device on the available serial ports.

New connection		New connection	
	Enter type, connection address and other settings		Enter type, connection address and other settings
Connection	USB 🔻	Connection	Serial port
	Radio connection	Port	COM1
			Radio connection
	V Ok K Cancel		V Ok Kancel

For USB connection, no address has to be selected, the server will establish the connection automatically. It must also be mentioned that in order to connect via USB or via the serial port, when radio modules are used, you will need to enable the "Radio connection" option in the same window.

For TCP/IP connection, you will be required to specify the IP address (e.g., 196.168.1.15). Connection will then be made to port 17999 of the specified IP address.

For modem connection, you will have to specify the telephone number (e.g., +79171112222), which corresponds to the SIM card, installed in the device. For this type of communication, GSM modem connected to the server is used. Preparation and configuration of the GSM modem is described in chapter 6 of this Manual.

After creating the connection, there will be a corresponding entry on the list with the information about its current status. By default, the outgoing connection is in the "*Idle*" state. To start up the connection, you will have to select the entry and perform the "*Start connection*" command. The server will then proceed to make the connection with the device in accordance with the specified connection configuration. If the connection is successful, the entry in the "*Device*" column will reflect the "*Connected*" status and the information about the serial number of the connected device, its model, software version. The clock indicator will show the time from the moment the connection was established. In the "*Object*" column, there will be information displayed regarding the crew and the well of the current measurement. In the "*Archive*" column, the information is displayed regarding the number of measurements and the overall size of the archive data to be read. The next line in this column will list the information about the archive reading speed or about other operations are currently executed by device. In the "*Current values*"

column, current measuring values of the device, codes of the work being done and active modes are shown.

Measurements can be read from the device in different modes. The reading mode is set on the connection control panel.

"Don't read measurements" – measurements are not read.

"Archive priority" – data reading is made from later data to the current measurement.

"Simultaneous reading" – data from the current measurement and from the archive are read in turns or alternately.

"Current measurement priority" - first the data from the current measurement are read, the archive is read only in case there are no current measurement data to be read.

The mode of reading measurements by default can be specified in the configuration of the server. A more detailed description of this is given in chapter 6 of this Manual.

To display the current measurement, execute the "Open current measurement" command. The window opened will automatically update the measurement as data from the device come in.

To adjust the connection and configuration of the device, there is the "*Device and connection configuration*" command. The configuration of the device can be adjusted if the device connection is active.

General conne	ctions settings	•	Network and GPRS setting	s	•
eneral connecti	ion settings		GRPS connection settings		
Department	ТН-Азнакаевскнефть	-	Device uses GRPS conne	ection	
🔽 Read measu	irements only for current department dev	ices	Parameter	Value	
		1999	Server 1 - Activity	Not active	1
			Server 1 - Address	Increase places	
			Server 2 - Activity	Active	
			Server 2 - Address	tand. Miletia	
			SIM card priority	SIM1	
			SIM1 - Access point (APN)	m2m.beeline.ru	
			SIM1 - Username	beeline	
			SIM1 - Password	beeline	
			SIM2 - Access point (APN)	internet.mts.ru	
essage			SIM2 - Username	mts	
Reading from d	evice was succeed		SIM2 - Password	mts	

"General connection settings" of the configuration contain the linkage of the device to the department. The removable memory module of the device from which measurements are being read may contain the measurements made by other devices. To read from the device the measurements from the device of "your" department only, the respective switch in the device configuration window can be used.

"Network and GPRS settings" set up the parameters for the device to establish communication with the server via the GPRS channel. The parameters include identifiers of the access points (APN) of the cell provider used, server addresses for communication to be established. Connection interval is defined by the time in minutes during which the device is in the stand-by mode before attempting to make connection. For constant connection, this parameter must equal zero.

Edited parameters of the configuration are writed with the respective button *"Write"*.

If the communication with the device breaks or there is no communication with the device, the connection will interrupt data exchange and pass over to the *"Pause"* mode. In 3 seconds, the server will try to re-establish communication with the device again.

In order to complete the operation of the outgoing connection, you will have to execute the "*Stop connection*" operation. The connection will break up communication with the device and go to the "*Idle*" mode.

"Incoming" connections are made by the device itself. The set-up of the server and the network equipment for incoming connections to be made is described in chapter 15 of this Manual. The device makes the connection with the server via the GPRS channel or via the network in line with the configuration set in the device. By default, the server receives the incoming connections with the devices via port 17999. The port number can be changed in the server configuration. After the device has established communication with the server, the list will have an entry showing the device is connected. The user can execute the same operations with this connection as with the outgoing connection. The only difference consists in the user being able to execute the "*Break the Connection*" command only, instead of the commands to make or stop such a connection, as a result of which the server will break the connection with the device. It is noteworthy that the device, in the meantime, will not discontinue the attempts to establish communication with the server in view of what is specified in its configuration.

For purposes of an active connection with the DEL-150 device, the operations for remote set-up of the device are available: "*Edit work code*", "*Edit measurements identification parameters*", "*Edit technological limits*" and "*Parameters corrections*". Using them, you can change the respective working parameters of the DEL-150 device through active connection. When the measurements identification parameters are changed, the device will automatically create a new measurement.

C					
Write measurer	ments identification parameters	•	Writing technological limits		
Vrite measureme	ents identification parameters		Technological limits of measuring val	ues	
Field	0		Sensor	Minimum	Maximum
Pad	0		Load on hook (tf)	12	120,000
141-1	000010144		Bore (tf)	1	15,000
we	000015144		Mud press.in (kgf/cm2)		8
Shop	0		Tongs Torque (tf*m)		
Crew	15		Rotor PDM (rom)		
Rig	340		Top Drive Torque (tf*m)		
Work code	0	_	Top Drive RPM (rpm)	2	2
			Mechanical Tongs Load (tf)	12	12
			Trip velocity (m/s)	2	2
			Messane		
			Bar Bar E and a second second		
) Configuration	n DEL150 Nº10012	_ = =	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation		
Configuration Operation Write work cod	n DEL150 №10012 le		Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections		
Configuration Operation Write work cod	n DEL150 №10012 le		Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections		
Configuration Operation Write work cod Write work code	DEL150 №10012	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor		Value
Configuration Operation Write work code Write work code Work code	n DEL150 №10012 le	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value
Configuration Operation Write work code Write work code Work code	n DEL150 Nº10012 le 4	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Write work code Work code	b DEL150 №10012 le 4	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Write work code	b DEL150 №10012 le 4 [•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work cod Write work code Work code	n DEL150 №10012 le 4	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Vrite work code Work code	1 DEL150 Nº10012	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
) Configuration Operation Write work code Write work code Work code	n DEL150 Nº10012 le 4	· · ·	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Work code	h DEL150 №10012 le 4 [Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Vrite work code	1 DEL150 Nº10012	•	Configuration DELISO Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
) Configuration per ation Write work code Work code	1 DEL150 Nº10012	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
) Configuration Operation Write work code Work code	4	•	Configuration DEL150 Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration operation Write work code Vrite work code	1 DEL150 Nº10012	•	Configuration DELISO Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration peration Write work code Work code	1 DEL150 Nº10012	•	Configuration DELISO Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0
Configuration Operation Write work code Work code	1 DEL150 №10012		Configuration DELISO Nº10012 Operation Parameters corrections Parameters corrections Sensor Bottomhole depth (m)		Value 0,0

Display of the list of connections can be adjusted using the tool panel located at the top of the list. The list can be sorted out according to the device Nos., crew Nos., or communication channel. Having enabled the option of grouping connections according to departments, you can additionally split up the connections into groups of the same department. Also the list can be filtered out by choosing outgoing or incoming connections, according to the department chosen by the user or only active connections.

On the "Devices" Panel, display of "Monitoring Windows" is also controlled and adjusted, i.e. the special windows in which, in a grid form, the windows of graphs plotted based on the current active measurements of the devices are displayed. For more details on the windows of the monitors, see their description in chapter 10 of this Manual.



8. "Measurements" Panel

The "Measurements" Panel displays the measurements saved in the database of the program.

ction Settings	Help						
	📑 Devices 📝 🥏		🚮 Open 🛛 🥩 🕹 🛛 😣	8 8 🗶 🚽			
	Devices	New Total	Measurements - Татнефть-Бур	ение / №2918 «	бр. Булякова»		
Server Devices	 Ф Петролайн-А / Стенды Ф Петролайн-А / Тестиров Петролайн-А / Новые приб Петролайн-А / Новые приб Тн-Азнакаевскнефть Тн-Нурлатнефть Тн-Прикамнефть 	14 28 31 50 31 667 1458 269 1285 372 1194	Measurement executing	Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.19 75,000 tf 4,208 tf 8 Not calculated 534K+	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Wel	DEL №2918 «бр. Булякова» Татнефть-Бурение 0 0 0 4566
easurements Reports	 В ТН-Янашнефть В Татнефть-Бурение № 1933 «бр. Григорьс № 2910 «бр. Хакинов № 2917 «бр. Вшивцев № 2918 «бр. Буляков № 2918 «бр. Буляков № 2918 «бр. Куляков 	176 294 612 1160 10 15 4 4 1 4 67 73 88 91	A, KALAANAARAA D	Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.18 10:21:00 75,000 tf 4,208 tf 8 60 (12:04:16) T:3 608K	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Well	DEL №2918 «бр. Булякова» Татисфть-Бурение 0 0 0 0 4566
inory module	 №2921 «бр. Хаматов №2974 «бр. Шешлян №10004 «бр.Чунако №10011 «бр.Гришечк №10013 «бр.Фархут №10013 «бр.Мансур 	1 3 1 1 62 92 46 66 56 477 29 53	11.5 1 100-141	Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.14 75,000 tf 4,208 tf 8 22 (02:27:35) T:2 76.7K	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Well	DEL №2918 «бр. Булякова» Татнефть-Бурение 0 0 0 4566
Directories	Measurements filter Measurements filter By date For last month Show Actual measurements Search text Enter search value	107 118 • •		Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.13 09:28:33 75,000 tf 4,208 tf 8 299 (09:15:24) T:23 208K	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Well	DEL №2918 «бр. Булякова» Татнефть-Бурение 0 0 0 0 4566
	🖌 Clear 💡	Apply		Datetime	2016.04.12 03:57:00	Device	DEL №2918 «бр. Булякова»

All the measurements have identifiers which are entered by the operator directly on the keyboard of the device when taking the measurement. Referred to the identifiers are: the date and time of the measurement, device No., shop and crew Nos., oil field No., cluster No. and well No.

The "*Measurements*" Panel is divided into two parts: a tree of measurement identifiers and a list of measurements, which belong to the identifier selected in the tree.

The first level of grouping in the tree is always represented by the department names. The subsequent grouping can be made at the user's option according to the following identifiers:

- According to the devices model and No. of the device;
- According to the crews shop and crew;
- According to the site oil field, pad, well.

Новых	Bcero	Бригады	Новых	Bcero	Объекты	Новых	Bcero
3	7	🖃 o Тестовое предприятие	3	7	🖃 o Тестовое предприятие	3	7
	2	🖻 0 «Карабаш»	2	4	ia 📚 0	3	6
	2	— 🧏 0 «Ведерников»		2	i 🦗 0	3	6
> 3	3	- 🤰 22 «Петров»		1	- 🗭 0		
	5	- 2 99		1	🜪 3884д		1
		🐵 🧊 1 «Маврино»		2	999999		1
		🖲 5 «Кузенбетьево»	1	1	i 😪 1		1
		🐵 o Подразделение А		5	🐵 o Подразделение А		5
	Новых 3	Новых Всего 3 7 2 3 3 3 5	Hotesky Beero Bowranis 3 7 2 ● 2 ● 3 3 3 5 ● ● 2 ● 2 ● 3 3 5 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 9 ● 10 ■ 11 ■ 12 ■ 13 ■ 14 ■ 15 ■ 16 ● 10 ■ 11 ■ 12 ● 13 ■ 14 ■	Новых Всего Бригады Новых 3 7 0 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Hotex Berry abs Hotex Berry abs Hotex Berry abs Berry abs	Hotex: Berro By Tecrosone npegnpartne 3 7 2 Image: Second Se	Новых Вего Бригады Новых Вего Объекты Новых 3 3 3 5 • • Карабаш• 2 4 • • Вего 3 3 2 • • О • Ведеранновъ 2 4 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

The tree and the list only display those measurements which satisfy the conditions defined in the "*Measurements Filter*".

By date	For last month	-
Show	Actual measurements	÷
Search text	Enter search value	

In the filter you can define the conditions for selection of measurements in terms of time: for the current twenty hour hours, yesterday's twenty four hours, for a week, for a month, for a quarter, as well as for a specific interval of the dates.

The database may contain a large number of measurements, therefore display of the list of measurements can take a considerable time. However, there is no constant need to see in the lists the measurements for whole time period. Therefore, it is strongly recommended to use time related conditions of the filter to speed up the work. As a rule, the most optimal is to use a display of measurements only for the last month.

Selection of the measurements in the filter can be made by type. Having chosen the "*New measurements*" type, the tree will only display the measurements which have been saved in the database, but which have not been opened a single time for the user to view them. To protect the data in the program, no physical deletion of measurements is provided. When the operation "*Delete measurements*" is executed, the measurements are only marked up as deleted, however they remain saved in the database of the program. Subsequently, in order to view such measurements, in the filter you can specify display of "*Deleted Measurements*". When "*Actual measurements*" are chosen, the measurements which are not deleted ones will be displayed.

In the filter, you can set selection of measurements according to a specific value of the identifier. For that purpose, you need to enter the value (crew or device No. or etc.) into the "Search text" field for input of the filter data.

The "*Apply*" button displays the measurements in the tree and on the list in accordance with the conditions of the filter. The "*Clear*" button would reset all the conditions of the filter to the default conditions and would update the list and the tree of measurements.



Having chosen in the tree the entry standing for the identifier of the measurements, the list of measurements will automatically display the measurements with this identifier. By pressing the right button of the mouse on the identifier and

having selected the item of the context menu "*Edit description*", the text description of the identifier can be changed. For example, you can sign for crew 15 of shop 4 by the family name of the crew leader "A.V. Petrov". Going forward, all the measurements of this crew will have the corresponding signature in this

identifier. The above operation aimed at creating text descriptions of the identifiers can be carried out for devices, shops, crews, oil fields, clusters and wells.

The list of measurements contains records of measurements with a summary of brief information.

میں	Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.07 93,400 tf 5,632 tf 8 236 (18:17:48) T:12 2.5M	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Well	DEL №1933 «бр. Григорьева» Татнефть-Бурение 0 0 0 0 14426
1 hi	Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	2016.04.06 93,400 tf 5,632 tf 8 161 (20:47:21) T:8 1.92M	Device Department Shop Crew Field Pad Well	DEL №1933 «бр. Григорьева» Татнефть-Бурение 0 0 0 0 14426

Also the entry contains, for convenience's sake, a reduced sketch of the graphs. The sketch and preliminary data on calculations are reflected in the entry for the measurements completed by the device only. In case the entry corresponds to a measurement which is being made at the current moment, then the sketch and the estimations are not reflected until all the last data of this measurement are read and the device starts on a new current measurement.

To perform operations with measurements or a group of measurements, you need to select them from the list of measurements. To select several measurements, by holding the CTRL button of the keyboard, mark up using the mouse the measurements needed.

With the measurement chosen or several measurements, you can perform operations by pressing the relevant buttons on the tool panel located above the list or by choosing the necessary item of the context menu.

Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight	2016.04.07 93,400 tf 5,632 tf		Device Department Shop	DEL №1933 «бр. Гри Татнефть-Бурение 0
Tackle block ratio Trip Excess Size Description	8 236 (18:17:48) T:12 2.5M	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Open Clear "new measurem Finish measurements	nent" marks
 Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trip Excess	2016.04.06 93,400 tf 5,632 tf 8 161 (20:47:21) 7-8		Edit description Edit department	. Гри ние
 Size Description	1.92M	8	Create report	
Datetime Max.load Tackle sys.weight Tackle block ratio Trin	2016.04.05 10:3 93,400 tf 5,632 tf 8 93 (11:17:25)	*	Export measurements Import measurement	Гри ние 5

To be able to view a measurement twice, click with the mouse on the line of the measurement in the list. That will open a new window and the measurement will be downloaded. The window of measurements is described in detail in chapter 9 of this Manual.

When a measurement is saved into the database or additions are made to the measurement, the measurement acquires the attribute of a "*new*" measurement in the form of asterisk. Once the user opens the measurement to be viewed, the attribute of the "*new*" measurement is cleared. This is convenient because it allows tracking of the new information from the devices.

The operation "*Clear new measurement marks*" allows you to clear the attribute of the "*new*" measurement without the user viewing it.

Department	Татнефть-Бур	ение
Device	DEL Nº1933	бр. Григорьева
Field	1	Enter description
Pad	34	Enter description
Well	14426	Enter description
Shop	1	Enter description
Crew	7	Enter description
asurement descr	ption	

The operation "*Edit description*" makes it possible to change the relevance of the measurement to a department, to change the following identifiers of the measurement: oil field, pad, well, shop or crew. This is necessary if erroneous data have been entered into the device, which, going forward, would impede the processing of the measurement. Also, in this window, you can input a description for each of the identifiers and a description of the measurement itself. It is noteworthy that the original identifiers (as read

from the device) will be saved in the measurement itself and will be available to be viewed in the measurement window. The operation "*Edit description*" can be executed only for one measurement.

Cattings		
Department	Петролайн-А /	Гестирование 🔻
	- A Ok	Cancel

To change relevance of the measurement to a department of one or several measurements, you can use the operation *"Edit department"*.

The operation "Delete measurements" will mark up the chosen measurements as deleted. You

can view the deleted in the database, by selecting the "Deleted measurements" type in the filter of measurements.

To transfer the measurements to another computer or save them in a separate file is the purpose the operation "*Export measurements*" is designed for. Mark up the necessary measurements and select the above mentioned operation. Then enter the name of the file in which the measurements will be saved, and press "*Export*". The progress of the export operation will be reflected in the window as messages.



To import the measurements from files is the purpose the operation "*Import measurements*" is designed for. Select the department to which the measurements being imported will refer to, then press "*Import*" and specify the file from which you need to import the measurements. Similar to the export operation, the progress of the import operation will be reflected as relevant messages in the window.

Choose setti measuremen	ngs for new report. To create report f ts they will be downloaded from serve	or several r.
port settings		
eport type	Measurement report	
Measurement chart		
Chart presentation	Full chart on single sheet	
Chart tabs	All tabs	
Vector presentation	n for the chart	
Measurement text det	ails	
System information		
Information abour	errors	
Trip	Show	
Drilling works	Show	,
	Show	•
Vernier works		

The operation "Create report" is establish reports designed to on measurements to be subsequently printed out or to be saved in the PDF format. Select the measurements and then select the operation "Create report". Then you need to specify the parameters of the report to be created. Using the parameters for presentation of the graph in the report, you can set display of the whole graph on the sheet or display of the graph by parts, based on the pre-set number of hours per one sheet of the report. The parameters for text information breakdown include settings for display of system information, the information about errors, trip operations,

drilling and vernier work. Then press the "*Create Report*" button. After downloading and processing measurements, the window of the established report will be opened. It, in line with the settings, will consistently display the graphs and the text information of each of the selected measurements.

To print out the report or save the report into the PDF file, select the respective button on the tool panel of the report window.



Measurement report		
Tanag tri-Superior Set 2015 (1907) 11/32 (10) (10) (10) Set 2015 (10) Ben 2016 (10) Ben 2016 (10) Ben 2016 (10)	Shap 0 Crew 0 Shap 0 Shap 0 Wat 2223 Wat 2223	
TOTADA OS	2004 - 20 - 2 3	
Massi yamadir dahilir		
Device: DE 150 NE10011 v10 25		
DEL 150 Electronic Fueroria		
Section and the section of the secti		
Westign 10.25		
Competency on Education		
Company Tanjedm-Ricewe		
Show 0		
Crew 0		
Ber 0		
Read D		
Berl C		
Meet 39630		
Max (and as basic 170,000 st		
Table block rate: 10		
Tacka catego valote 2 000 M		
Trins on at 8 (02/06/14)		
The surger of the CONTROLS		
Figure and the second s		
Supervisit Tri		
Process Units No		
The state of the s		
Free distribution for		
Trin Kena 1		
Logid on Perse So		
East Market Control of		
Reality No.		
Drains: No.		
Line consister? No		
Distance comparison Mo.		
0000 Colling work		
00/25/35 Trip (60/323 trip) (25:181		
01 S1:13 Orilling works		
05-35-34 THO (60 976 H000-11-441		
05:47:18 Ortiling works		
05:47:57 Trip (51,986 #100:00:07)		
05:48:04 Online works		
11:17:20 Trip (\$4,763 trip():09:341		
11:25:54 Ortilling works		
16:38:04 Trip (6):61:517 07(00:15:41)		
16:33:45 Oriting works		
20:49:06 Trip (62:019 t)(00:25:421		
21:14:48 Drilling works		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Page 2 of 2		
		2008

9. Measurements Window

The measurements window is designed to view and process the measurements. To open up the measurements, you will have to click twice on the measurements entry in the "*Measurements*" panel or on the entry of the device in the "*Devices*". The window of the measurement with active connection of the device is able to reflect the last current readings and to update them as data come from the device.





In the right part of the window, there is located the area of graphs for the measurement, while in the left part, there is a details of the measurement and information about the graphs in the form of a list.

	Series			Measu
Cursor		2016.01	27 11:26:10	Gene
Sectio	on 1			
V Lo	ad on hoo ore (tf)	k (tf)	• 66,204	
	echanical T	ongs Load (tf)	0.1	
Sectio	on 3			
	ud pressuin	(Antikm2)	• 73.9	
		Show only selected :	sensor series	
	17	Show all series		
	1 <u>.</u>	Set autoscale for ser	ies 🗟	
		Chart display setting	IS	
Series Avera	calculation ige values list setting series in list with value	s in viewing space In Calculate values s t. 55		50 - 40 - (1) 30 - 20 - 10 - 0 -

In the area of the measurement graphs, sensor readings are shown, as registered by the device, event markings, errors, work being done, reflected on time scale basis. Next to the time axis, there is information about the number of trip operations, carried out for a certain hour, indicator lines of the drill and vernier modes.

The "Series" tab sets out a list of graphs. By default, the list reflects entries of the graphs which have readings sensor by sensor. By setting or removing a marking on the entry of the graph, you can either switch on or off its display. The value on the right in each entry of the list corresponds to the values of the graph in the selected position of the cursor. The displayed values will change with the cursor position changing in the area of the graphs. If you select the entry of the graph using the right button of

the mouse, this will display a context menu with additional operations with regard to the graph.

In order to change the scale of the graphs, you can use the "Zoom", "Unzoom" buttons or by selecting a specific value of the graphs scale. To display an arbitrary section of the graphs, move the cursor to the beginning of the area, press the left button of the mouse and, holding the button pressed, move the cursor to the end of the section. The selected section will be zoomed in and displayed for the whole area of the graphs. To move the displayed area, press the right button of the mouse on the area of the graphs, while holding the button pressed and moving the cursor, select the area you want to be displayed. To move the area, you can also use the scrolling wheel of the mouse. To return to display of the whole graph in the window, use the operation "Show all" on the tool panel.



To change the scale of the graphs axes, aim the cursor on the axis. Then, holding the left button of the mouse and moving the cursor, select the position of the axis you want. To change the scale of the axis, perform the same operation using the right button of the mouse. To return to the initial scale of the axes, do *"Show all"*.

"Measurement display settings" allows the user to change the graphic depiction of the measurement. *"General settings"* includes the capability of vertical or horizontal orientation of the graph and changing the size of the font in axis captions and markings. Also on this tab, you can adjust display of the histogram graph of trip operations, information about trip operations hour by hour, display of errors and exceeded values.

"*Chart tabs*" are intended to display graphs grouped together according to some attribute. For example, for the sake of convenience, you can create separate tabs for process parameters, for graphs of fuel change in the tanks and for other sensor readings, etc.

asurement display	y settings			Measurement displ	lay settings	
al settings tabs ns rs	General settings Sheet orientation Font size () Show trips count o () Group multi-chann () Show excess () Show enrors	Inorecontally B ann series in chart el charts inside sections	v Or	neral settings art tabs ctons nsors	Orart table ✓ Use chart tables and show table panel General set Faul Chart tab tige Gen Chart tab tige Gen Table skyclary settings ✓ Show bottom to create table ✓ Show bottom to create table ✓ Show bottom to create table	Add Remove Move up Move down

In "Sections" you can set up the number of graph sections, their size and presentation. In "Sensors" you can set up display of the sensor readings graphs: relevance to the section, color, thickness of the line, type of the value point on the graph and the scale of the axis – automatic, based on the measurement data or manual, based on the minimum and maximum values entered. You can also change display of the graph name.

General eettinge	Sections		General settings	Sensors	
General Sectings Chart table Sections Sensors	Sections count (1-10) Show empty sections Section sizes 1 (2)(3)(4)(5)(6)(7)(8)(9)(10) Section size Show prid on section	10 🔔	Chart tabs Sections Sensors	Active chart tab	Gaz Son hoot Son Son hoot Son h
				General display series sett Name Load on hook Section <u>1</u> • Points • 3 Scale Auto	Display current values Color Yes Color Yes Min 0.000

The changed parameters of display can be saved either for all the measurements of the device, or for all the measurements of the department to which the device belongs.



The "*Details*" tab contains text details regarding the measurement presented as a tree. The "*Show details*" button in the tool panel of the tab is designed to adjust display of the details.

The text details contain the information about identifiers of the measurement, about reference and calculation parameters, the information about the sensors connected, details about the trip operations, drill and vernier work, messages about events, exceeded readings, errors and the information about the work being done.

If the user has changed the values of the measurement identifiers, their values will be marked with the "*" sign. Having switched on the item "*Show original identifications*" you can view the original values of the identifiers read from the device or the memory module.

Estimated parameters include:

• Number of trip operations with total

time of the operations given,

- Average time of trip operations,
- Number of exceeded values.
- Duration and number of drilling operations
- Consumption of flush fluid (mud)
- Consumption of fuel

ettings	
Those parameters are used to correct calcu load and time excess and etc.	lations of trip operations,
Tackle system weight correction (kgf)	0
Invert table torque values	Off 🗸
Absolute values for table torque	Off 👻
Show negative values of load on hook	Off 🗸
Ignore trip time excess	Off 🗸
ignore trip time excess	Off

The trip operations are counted automatically. The beginning of the trip operation is registered when the load on the hook is exceeded more than 300 kgf during more than 2 seconds. The end of trip operations is registered at the level of the load on the hook less than 300 kgf within more than 7 seconds. On the graph, the trip operations are shown as a histogram in the load graph with an indication of maximum level of the load registered in the course of trip operations. When

the device is set up for the "drill" mode, it is understood that no trip operations are underway, therefore, while this mode is in operation, no count is taken.

With the help of "*Measurement calculation settings*" you can modify the algorithm for calculation of the number of trip operations. When the amount of weight of the block-and-tackle system is incorrect in the measurement,

determination of the beginning and the end of the trip operations may be hindered. The situation can be rectified by introducing an adjustment of the block and tackle system weight in the settings. The value of the adjustment introduced will be reflected in the chain falls weight parameter in brackets, for example – "Weight of the block and tackle system: 2.8tons force (+0.5 tons force)". The load graph display will not, in any way, be impacted by the adjustment introduced, and it will be only used by the algorithm of counting the number of trip operations. The modified parameters of the calculation can be either saved for this particular measurement, or for all the subsequent measurements made by the device.

Also in the window "*Measurement calculation settings*", it is allowed to set up display of measurement data without their modification, namely, inverting the value of torque on the rotor, display of negative load values and shutting down exceeded timing values in the procedure of counting trip operations and other settings.

The exceeded value parameter has the following meanings: "PL" is the number of exceeded process limits (minima and maxima), "TL" is the number of exceeded technological limits, "L" is the number of exceeded values of the weight on the hook, "B" is the number of exceeded limits of the load on the tool, "T" is the number of trip operations with duration of less than 9 seconds. The trip operations which have exceeded limits are marked up in the tree in red.

The process limits are determined by the minimum and maximum values of the sensor readings defined directly in the device. The technological limits can be specified remotely by users for DEL-150 devices and are designed to control technological operations in the conduct of work.

If the measurement is a current measurement being taken in the device and the option "*Auto refresh measurement*" is on, then upon arrival of new measurement data from the device, the window will automatically display them. If the option "*Show last values*" is on, then when an update is made, the graphs and details will be offset to display the last data while retaining the current time scale. This is convenient for monitoring of the work being done – graphs will keep on changing as time goes by in the automatic mode until the measurement is completed.

The functions "*Previous measurement*" and "*Next measurement*" are intended to download previous and subsequent measurements taken by the device without exiting the measurements window.

The operations "*Change work code*", "*Change identification params on device*", "*Edit technological limits*" and "*Parameters correction*" are meant to change the relevant parameters on the device through active connection and are accessible to the window with current active measurement of the device. For more details regarding the description of these functions, refer to chapter 7 of the Manual.

You can set up display of the headings for measurements windows in the item "Settings" of the main menu in the program. You can choose between the

setting of the department, choose the device, crew or well being measured for display in the heading of the window.

Oisplay settings	Measurement window's titles display setting:		
Language Units Alarms Network Service mode	Show in measurement window's title Show department in window's title I Show descriptions in window's title	Device Short title	•

These settings are valid for the headings of the cells in the monitoring windows as well.

eate measurements repor	t	
Choose settin measurement	gs for new report. To create report for sever s they will be downloaded from server.	al
Report settings		
Report type	Measurement report	•
Measurement chart		
Chart presentation	Current view of the chart	•
Chart tabs	All tabs	
Vector presentation	for the chart	
Measurement text deta	ils	
New report will contain menu "Show details" on	details, as it is in current opened measuremen tab "Details" to modify their presentation.	it. Use

To print out the report or to save the report in PDF format on the opened measurement, select the button "Create report". Then you have to specify the parameters of the report being created. As parameters for presentation of the graph in the report, you can set up depiction of the whole graph on one sheet, that of only the current view of the graph or depiction of the graph part by part, depending on the specified number of hours per one sheet of the report. The text details of the report will correspond to the presentation of details in the tree of the measurement window. Then press the button "Create report". After processing the measurement, the

window of the established report will be opened. It, in line with the settings, will display consistently the graphs and the text information of the measurement.

To print out the report or save the report into the file in PDF, select the corresponding button on the tool panel of the report window.

10. Monitoring Windows

Monitoring windows are intended for online control of the current measurement data coming in from the devices.



The monitoring windows are created and controlled through corresponding functions in the "*Devices*" Panel. In order to create display of the current data of the connected device in the new or already existing monitoring window, in the "*Devices*" tab, select the line of the device, then using the right button of the mouse, call the context menu and select the corresponding item of the menu.

Devices			Object	Archive	Curre	nt values		
	DEL140-DP Nº2921 v7.83 6p. Xamar 85.140.0.255 - Connected	гова 4.76с - 00:00:32	Татнефть-Бурение Crew 0-0 Well 20396	Measurements 272 - 93.8M / 3.38K Archive read 552 b/s	Load Mud	39,272 tf 9,12 MPa	Тпр	^
	DEL140-DP №2974 v7.64 бр. Шег	Open current me	easurement	Measurements 430 - 56.5M	Load	1,778 tf	Trip, [01:21] Downtime	-
		Abort connection	n					
	DEL150 №10004 v10.25 бр.Чума 85.140.2.134 - Connected	Add connection	to monitoring window	Татнефть-Бурение	d	17,562 tf 0.00 MPa	Trip	
6		P Edit work code		Nurlatneft ^{Lo}				E
	DEL150 №10011 v10.25 бр.Гриш 85.140.2.148 - Connected	Edit measuremer Edit teshnologis	nts identification parameters	Create new monitoring window.	d d	33,430 tf 5,04 MPa	Driling	
FB3	DEL150 Nº10012 v10.42 6p.Фарх	Parameters corre	ections	Measurements 35 - 6.12M	Load	17,529 tf	Trip, [02:29] Downtime	

Holding the left button of the mouse on the heading of the cell, it can be moved to another cell of the monitoring window.



Also when the cursor is aligned with the heading of the cell, this makes accessible the button for opening the measurement window, the button for closing the cell, as well as selection of displayed time interval in the current cell.

The text of the cell heading corresponds to the text of the measurement window heading and can be adjusted in the item of the main menu "*Settings*".

In the menu of the monitoring window, you can change the name of the window, as well as the sizing of the cell table from 1x2 to 6x3. To display a greater number of connections you will need to create a new monitoring window.

Monitoring v	vindow		6	X
9	You can manag create new, re presentation.	e monitoring wi move or change	ndows here e their	
Nurlatnef	t			
Татнефт	ь-Бурение		1	li I
				_
4	C	🖌 Ok	🔀 Ca	ncel

The program memorizes the last locations of the monitoring windows and creates them in the previous positions when the program is opened. You can adjust display and edit the list of existing monitoring windows on the "*Devices*" Panel in the "*Monitors*" Menu using the item "*Manage monitoring windows*".

11. "Reports" Panel

The "*Reports*" Panel is designed to generate analytical reports on measurements. The reports are generated in the form of files on the server and then become available for downloading and opening on the user's computer.



porctype		
Work report		
Report contain information a process. To create report pl	about works, which are i lease select crew, devio	registered in device during work e or well, and time period.
emplates for selected report	type	
Base report template		Create template
		Edit
		Remove
	🗇 Previous	Next X Cir
ort configuration	(ja Previous	Next 🏼 🕻 Cla
ort configuration andtions of data selection Department	C 🗇 Previous	Next X Cla
ort configuration onditions of data selection Department Company title	i de Previous	Next X Cla
ort configuration anditions of data selection Department Company title Wells	Previous	Next Cla Datetime conditions Per current month Month selection
ort configuration anditions of data selection Department Company title Wels 0-0-32472	Previous	Detetme conditions Per current month March
off configuration and tions of data selection Department Company title Wells 0-0-32472 Crews	Previous	Datetine conditions Per current month Month selection March V 2016
ort configuration inditions of data selection peak timest Company title 0-0-32472 Ceres Ceres Al cress Decision	Previous	Datetine conditions Per current anoth Month selection Narch v 2016 v
ort configuration and/sone of data selection Department Company title Wels Wels Or 32472 Orews Al Arcense Devices Mideanamic Mideanamic	Previous	Datetine conditons Per current nonth Month selection Narch • 2016 •
ort configuration and tons of data selection Department Company title 0-0-32472 Crevis Al crevis Devices Al devices	Previous	Datetine conditions Per current month • Month selection Nerch • 2016 •
ort configuration and tons of data selection Department Company title Wels 0 -0-32472 Crease 0 -0-32472 Crease A 1 Crease A 1 Crease Crease A 1 Crease	Previous The second s	Datetine conditions Per current month ~ Month selection March ~ 2016 •

To create a report, you have to select "*Report wizard*" in the "*Reports*" tab. After that, consistently, step-by-step you have to specify the settings of the report to be created. First, you select the type of report to be established. On the basis of the basic template of the report, you can create your own templates using the built-in editor of templates.

Then parameters for sampling the measurement data for the report to be created are specified. You need to specify the department, identification data of the measurements (well Nos., crew Nos., device Nos.), several ones can be specified after a comma, time conditions and settings for grouping the data together in the report. At the next stage, you need to check all the specified settings and select "*Create*". The assignment for the report to be established



will be sent to the server and will be placed in the general queue of tasks.

It must be also pointed out that for certain types of reports to be established, it may take a considerable time. In the list of reports, the entry of the task will be displayed in non-active color for the time period of its execution. After creation of the report is completed, the document will be accessible for downloading and opening.

X N	licros	oft Excel - Отчет по работам - КазМунайГаз,	скважины (0-0-1160) з	а Декабрь 201	3 - Администратор.xls		-	x
	₫ай	л <u>П</u> равка <u>В</u> ид Вст <u>а</u> вка Фор <u>м</u> ат С <u>е</u>	рвис <u>Д</u> анные <u>О</u> ки	но <u>С</u> правка	Введите вопр	oc	-	. 8 ×
D.	100	% • ∛ ∥ Arial • 8	• жкц		3 39 % 000 ; % ;%		🖽 • 🕭 •	<u>A</u> • .
	B7	 ✓ f [1] Монтаж подъемни 	ка					
-	A	B C	D E	F	G	Н		-
1	0	рганизация <u>КазМунайГаз</u>	Цех <u>0</u>					
2		Прибор ДЭЛ140-ДП №1847 v6.80	Бригада 3					
3			Месторождение 0					
4		Начало 2013.12.20 18:02:01	Куст 0					
5		Окончание 2013.12.21 20:35:08	Скважина <u>116</u>	0				
6	N≌	Наименование работ	Дата \ Время	Длительн.	Примечания			
7	1	[1] Монтаж подъемника	2013.12.20 18:02:06	02:09:40				
8	2	[3] Подготовительные работы	2013.12.20 20:11:46	00:08:45				
9	3	[31] Заправка,заводка двигателя	2013.12.20 20:20:31	00:30:46				
10	4	[3] Подготовительные работы	2013.12.20 20:51:17	01:05:14				
11	5	[2] Подъем насосных штанг	2013.12.20 21:56:31	00:48:26				
12	6	[3] Подготовительные работы	2013.12.20 22:44:57	00:18:17				
13	7	[4] Подъем труб НКТ	2013.12.20 23:03:14	01:32:17				
14	8	[3] Подготовительные работы	2013.12.21 00:35:31	00:29:31				
15	9	[42] Перерыв/обед	2013.12.21 01:05:02	00:50:22				
16	10	[27] Работы ЦИР	2013.12.21 01:55:24	00:59:52				
17	11	[31] Заправка,заводка двигателя	2013.12.21 02:55:16	00:24:49				
18	12	[5] Спуск труб НКТ	2013.12.21 03:20:05	00:55:32				
19	13	[3] Подготовительные работы	2013.12.21 04:15:37	00:36:14				
20	14	[5] Спуск труб НКТ	2013.12.21 04:51:51	00:13:20				in the second
21	15	131 Donrotopytensuse nañots	2013 12 21 05-05-11	00:36:01			-	
114 4	•	N Vage1		11		_		21
Гото	80							

12. "Memory module" Panel

"Memory module" Panel is designed to read measurements from the removable memory module of the device and the file images of the measurements. Connect the interface to USB-port and insert into its connector the Memory Module. The list will reflect all the Memory Modules connected to the computer.

In the list, select the line of the interface or storage device and press "*Read from module*" to begin reading the measurements. In the process of work, there will be displayed status messages, messages about found measurements and saving them on the database. Having clicked twice on the entry of the message on the saved measurement, you can open this message to be viewed.

To read from the files, press "*Read from files*" and select the files from which you want to read the data. The reading process will be reflected similar to the process of reading from the Memory Module.

To speed up the reading of the measurements, the user may set the time interval for selective reading of the measurements: for the last month, quarter, year. This allows the old measurements which are not part of the sampling not to be read.



To clear the Memory Module, you have to press the button "Additional" and select the item "Clear module...". Attention! After clearing, it will be impossible to bring back the measurements saved in the Memory Module.

13. "Directories" Panel

The "*Directories*" Panel is meant for viewing and editing the reference information of the server about the codes of the work activities, devices, departments and users.

Well-boring and W Connection Settings	Varkover Control - Local connection : Help		- • •
	Works Devices Users Company and departments		
Server	Company tite	🔊 Refresh	Save Save
Devices Devices Measurements Reports Remory module Memory module	Preparing Preparing		
Anunucros	20.4K / 204K 00.03-55 Connection actabilities		

The "Works" tab contains the information presented in tabular form about the codes of the work activities for each of the departments. The department is selected on the tool panel of the tab. The codes of the work activities are used to mark up the beginning of the activities by the operator directly on the device. In the measurements window the codes entered by the operator into the device are presented as text, in accordance with the department of the device and the table of the work codes. The user is provided with the opportunities of creating, editing and removing entries from the table of activities codes. Also the user can export the table of activities codes into the text file or import it from the text file. This may be used to transfer the information between computers or servers. After introducing changes to the table of activities codes, you need to complete "Save" for the changes to be adopted.

The "Devices" tab contains the information about the devices registered on the server: serial No. of the device, model of the device, version of software, relevance of the device to the department and text description. An entry about the device can be created manually in the table by entering the serial number of the device. Also you can change relevance of the device to the department. When the measurement is saved, it will be assigned the relevance to the department, which corresponds to that in the entry of the device. If when the measurement is saved, the device is missing from the table of devices, its entry will be created automatically with specification of relevance to the department set by default.

	Works D	evices Users Compa	ny and departm	ients				
	🥩 🔝	departments	•	📷 Create 🛛 🙀 Remove			🕜 Refresh	Sav
Server	Model	Serial numbe	r Version	Department - SIM	Description	Commentary		
[[[]]	DEL 140-	OP 2107	7.39	Белкамнефть				
(in the set	DEL 140-	OP 2355	7.86	Оренбургбурнефть				
Devices	DEL 140-	OP 2357	7.86	Оренбургбурнефть	810-404960Kpmman	No. of Concession, Name		
	DEL 140-	OP 2358	7.54	Оренбургбурнефть	838-991-2901, pp. run	niner.		
	DEL 140-	DP 2360	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	\$10-404 - 31.50/Hypares	and the state of t		
	DEL 140-	OP 2362	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	810-461-400 (Jourspoor	-		
easurements	DEL 140-	DP 2365	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00-H90 - 2621 Japanuar	nin are		
	DEL 140-	OP 2367	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	838-461-1136 diservery	100		
	DEL 140-	DP 2586	7.55	Оренбургбурнефть	810-668 - 128 Lingurum	100		
	DEL 140-	OP 2588	7.37	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00 - 409 - 2000 (Jamua)	- MI		
Reports	DEL 140-	DP 2598	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00 464 - 26-90 Apparent	in		
	DEL 140-	OP 2599	7.36	Оренбургбурнефть	838-461-100-Kpersum	500.00		
	DEL 140-	OP 2852	7.79	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00 - 600 - 50 Comprised			
	DEL 140-	DP 2959	7.61	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00 -100 - 101 Jaw year			
emory module	DEL 140-	DP 2971	7.61	Оренбургбурнефть	832-476-1135/0 Barw	Thin .		
	DEL 140-	OP 2972	7.61	Оренбургбурнефть	REPAIR-MORPHIAN	N/1.44		
	DEL 140-	OP 2973	7.61	Оренбургбурнефть	8.00 410 - 6240-68.apro			
	DEL 140-	OP 2981	7.61	Оренбургбурнефть	810-461-620, (partype			
Directories	DEL 140-	4P 1228	6.01	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEL 140-	4P 1338	6.01	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEL 140-	OP 1507	6.11	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEL 140-	DP 1527	6.15	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEL 140-	DP 1607	6.26	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEL 140-	OP 1618	7.55	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				
	DEI 140-	OP 1619	6.59	Петролайн-А / Новые приборы				

In the server configuration, you can restrict reception of data through input connections from unregistered devices. By setting up in the configuration the option "*Reading Measurements (Unregistered new devices*)" in the value "*Don't Read Measurements*", you can inhibit the reading and saving of the measurements for those devices which are not on the list of the devices.

Well-boring and Wo Connection Settings	orkover Control - Local connection Help		
Server Devices Measurements Reports Permory module	Movies Devices (Livers, Company and departments) Center and Remove Movies Arrow Movies Proportionents Departments Departments Departments	vn Conpany delais Title Conpany tile Modfy Department delais Title Department 1 Sone tale Department 1 Defail department 1 Defail department 1 Defail department 1 Defail department 1 Defail department 1	Sove
Администра	тор 12.2К / 83.2К 00:01:3	Connection established	

The "Company and departments" tab contains the information about the company and its departments. Available in the tab are the operations aimed at creating, editing and removing department entries. In the entry editing window,

you can also set up the attribute of the department by default for automatic creation of new devices.

The "Users" tab contains the information about the server users, their logins and passwords as well as the rights of access.

Works Devices Users Company	and departments		
Server Devices Devices Devices Reports Devices Devices	Baptitie User details Light anne Administrator Light anne Administrator Light anne Administrator Light anne Administrator Commentary Image: Commentary Image: Commany	gî Refesh	S S

2	Enter full user name, login and access server	password to
Full name	Administrator	
Login	admin	
Password	•••••	
Confirmation	•••••	
Blocked	No	,
	19 апреля 2016г.	
Description		
	√ ok	X Cance

When a new user is created for access to the remote server, the user's full name is specified, the login name, the password for access to the server and description. To inhibit entry into the server, without deleting the user's record, you will need to use the "*Blocked*" option.

After the user has been created, the user is assigned the rights of access to the information and the functions of the server. The user can be authorized to work with the measurements and devices of only definite departments. For that purpose, in the list of the *"user's departments"* you will need to select and mark up the corresponding

entries. In the list "user's rights" the rights are defined to perform operations by the user selected in the list.

It is recommended that all the possible users of the server be divided into three generalized groups: administrators, users and guests. For administrators, you will need to specify access to all the departments and all the possible rights. The group of users will have to have their access restricted to such options as "Managing server configuration, users, departments and devices", "Device configuration editing", as well as assign the relevant departments to them. For guest access, it is recommended that all the markings in the rights of access be removed. Guest access is usually used to work with the information without being able to introduce changes into it.

14. "Service" Panel

The "Service" Panel provides access to the service functions of the program. The service mode of the program operation is accessible to service centers only which carry out service and repairs of the devices. To enable the service mode, you will have, in the "Settings" menu, to select the item "Service mode settings". Then, having marked up the respective item, you will be required to enter the password for access to the service mode. In case you have entered the correct password, after reloading the program, the icon of the "Service" Panel will be displayed.

The service mode provides capabilities of updating the software of the device's control module. To update the software, select, in the corresponding fields, the files of micro-program updates. Connect the device to the computer and turn it on. Then select the operation to be executed as shown in the figure and press the "*Execute*" button. The progress of updating will be reflected in the relevant status messages. After the updating of the micro-programs is over, to put the device into the working mode, you will be required to complete the actions shown in the status messages.

(4) Well-boring and W	orkover Control	
Connection Settings	Hep	
	Update device firmware Main controller	
Server	E:\PROJECTS\TOUCAN\FILES\DEL140.FIRMWARE\DEL140_120_DP_753.bin	a
	E: VROJECTS\TOUCANVFILES\DEL140.FIRMWARE\DEL-140-Master_V03.29.bin	a
Devices	Additional settings	
1.000	Data packetsize 256 v	
Measurements	Show write process details Disabled	
	The operators section	
Reports	Messages	
Memory module		
Directories		
Service		
	J	

15. Configuration of the Enterprise's Dedicated Server and Network Connections

The distribution file simultaneously contains the client part and the server part of the software. Using the server part, one can organize the general dedicated server of the enterprise which will be receiving connections of remote devices and with which all the users of the enterprise will be working.

The hardware requirements for the dedicated server are different from the requirements applying to the simple client workplace. The recommended minimal configuration of the server is as follows: CPU Intel Xeon, RAM 8GB, HDD RAID5 300GB, UPS, Microsoft Windows Server 2008R2.

Program installation on the dedicated server is identical to installation of the simple workplace.

Connection of the client part of the program to the local or remote server of the program is made via port 17997. Connection of the DEL devices to the server of the program is made via port 17999 (can be changed in the server configuration). Connection of the DEL videorecorders to the server of the program is made via port 17998 (can be changed in the server configuration). To organize connections of remote clients and devices to the server of the enterprise program, the following is required:

1. Set up in the router, with the help of which the local network of the enterprise is connected to the Internet provider, the forwarding of ports 17997, 17998, 17999 from the external static IP-address issued by the provider to the internal address of the dedicated server in the local network.

2. Check the settings of the firewall to authorize reception by the server processor (Toucan.Server.exe) of input connections via ports 17997, 17998, 17999.

3. Set up the DEL devices for connection to the dedicated server to the enterprise network's external static address.

4. At the client workplaces, in the program, create connection to the dedicated server via external static address or via the server's local address (for local clients).

5. In the case of connections of the remote clients to the Internet via proxy server, set up the operation of the client application via proxy server in the item *"Settings"* of the main menu of the client software.

To complete the above mentioned actions, one has to contact the enterprise's system administrator.

16. Integration with the Information Systems

In the server part of the program, automatic export of data through ADO connection into the Database Management System (SQL Server, Oracle) is implemented. As the data from the devices reach the server of the application, they are unloaded into the export data base in the automatic mode.

The settings for connection to the export data base can be adjusted in the configuration tab to the server. The structure of the export data base is created and supported automatically, it suffices to specify empty data base in the line of the connection.

Well-boring and W	orkover Control - Local connection		
Server	Information Statistics Configuration		
Devices Measurements	Server information Connection settings - DEL devices Connection settings - Tablet devices Connection settings - CallecSky Hodem configuration Connection settings for DMZ Reverse Proxy Database Heastneements export		
Reports Memory module Directories	✓ Measurements export - Database Active Database structure Database connection string Active connections count Connection timeout (sec) Command timeout (sec)	Ves Standart Provider ->SQUNCLI10.1;Integrated S 3 60 60	
Администра	rop 2.12K/14.4K 00:00:12	Connection established	

Please note that the volume of the data coming in to be saved is significant, therefore it is recommended that export be outputted to the server of the Database Management System with sufficient physical characteristics. Recommended minimum configuration of the Database Management System server is as follows: CPU Intel Xeon, RAM 16GB, HDD RAID5 500GB, UPS, Microsoft Windows Server 2008R2, SQL Server 2008.

Also the server of the "*Well-boring and Workover Control*" program is capable of transmitting data on measurements and current status of the devices to the information systems of the enterprises. The format and the protocol of data exchange are to be agreed within the framework of bi-lateral negotiations with the companies developers of the information systems.

Description of the structure of the export base and the configuration of the data exchange with outside systems are available upon request.

17. Technical Support

With respect to the technical issues, for purposes of consulting the experts responsible for production of the program as well as for purposes of expressing comments and suggestions regarding this program, please contact us directly using the following contact details.

The technical data which are communicated when you contact us can be used for internal purposes, including technical support of the software products and development of software.

NPP Petroline-A LLC POB 90 Naberezhnye Chelny, Republic of Tatarstan, 423819 +7 (8552) 535-535, 38-04-97 e-mail: <u>main@pla.ru</u> web: <u>www.pla.ru</u>